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IN THE IOWA DISTRICT COURT IN AND FOR POLK COUNTY 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

UPON THE PETITION OF    ) 

) 

DEEANN RAE JOHNSON,   )  CASE NO. DRCV37370 

     ) 

Petitioner,    ) 

) 

) 

AND CONCERNING    )  MOTION FOR CONTEMPT 

) AND WRIT OF ASSISTANCE 

RICHARD WILLIAM HOFFMANN, SR. )   

)  

Respondent,    ) 

) 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

     COMES NOW the Respondent, named Richard W. Hoffmann, Sr., currently residing at 5941 

Vista Drive, Apt #436, West Des Moines, IA  50266, and hereby applies to the Court for a 

Petition for Modification of Custody, Child Support, and Child Visitation Rights and Writ of 

Assistance with Petitioner, DeeAnn Rae Johnson, currently residing at 1191 Winter Street NE, 

Salem, OR  97301, thus modifying the current Stipulation for the following reasons: 

     Per the language of the above mentioned current order on file on Page 4, paragraph 3, line "j" 

specifically states, "Any other times as agreed upon by the parties or in writing WITH 72 HOURS 

NOTICE [EMPHASIS ADDED!] if not agreed." 

     It was agreed between the parties on or before May 15, 2014 that Petitioner, DeeAnn Ray Johnson 

would move to Salem, Oregon on Friday, May 30, 2014 upon departing from the Des Moines 

international airport that afternoon. At which time, it was agreed that Respondent, Richard W. Hoffmann, 

Sr., would from that moment forward, be the primary physical custodian of both Morgan Elizabeth 

Johnson-Hoffmann, born September 13, 2005, and Noah Christian Johnson-Hoffmann, born October 5, 

2006, from May 30, 2014 through July 12, 2014 when Petitioner, DeeAnn Ray Johnson AGREED to 

return for her personal vehicle and her belongings and move herself and then said minor children to 1191 
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Winter Street NE, Salem, Oregon.  97301. 

     Respondent, Richard W. Hoffmann, Sr. was scheduled to attend the National Fire Protection 

Association convention to meet with the top constituents of Underwriters Laboratory who will test and 

certify and NFPA Title 14 Engineers who will write the regulatory code (laws) to mandate said 

revolutionary, patented, fire protection system on June 9 and 10, 2014 in Las Vegas, Nevada.  He was 

then scheduled to fly to Kansas City to attend mandatory job training on June 11, 12, and 13, 2014 with 

plans to arrive home late that Friday night. Respondent made all proper arrangements for full childcare 

for both said minor children from Monday, June 9, 2014 at noon at the time of his drop off at the Des 

Moines International Airport through Saturday morning on June 14, 2014 with Kenneth Stoner (12 year 

family friend of Petitioner, DeeAnn Rae Johnson) of 1212 Southlawn Drive, Des Moines, Iowa for the 

evening and night hours.  Additionally, Respondent arranged for Kenneth Stoner’s niece, Morgan 

O'Connell, who resides in Ankeny, Iowa and was hired by Petitioner as the children's primary care 

provider for the entire summer of 2013, was responsible for child care during the day hours from 8:30 

AM until 3:30 PM throughout  the indicated week.  Signed emergency doctor and dental care releases 

were signed by the Respondent, witnessed, and provided to both Kenneth Stoner and Morgan O’Connell. 

To be COMMPLIANT, Respondent then notified Petitioner regarding said details in Exhibit “A-1” 

     As seen in the attached text dialogue initiated by Petitioner directed at Respondent, Petitioner tried to 

change the date from the agreed July 12, 2014 to July 1, 2014 and then stated she was going to get them 

in the week of June 9, 2014 as seen in Exhibits “A-1” through “A-9 “.   

     After failing to enroll her friend Deborah L. Eastwood of 4232 65
th
 Street, Urbandale, Iowa, the 

Petitioner then contacted her sister, Anika L. Blum of 413 Winterberry Street, Ankeny, Iowa  50023 and 

requested she immediately report to Kenneth Stoner's residence to PHYSICALLY REMOVE BY 

INTIMIDATION AND FORCE both Noah C. Johnson-Hoffmann, and Morgan E. Johnson-Hoffmann, 

from Kenneth Stoner's residence in Des Moines and allegedly took them to her residence in Ankeny 

WITHOUT RESPONDENT’S KNOWLEDGE OR APPROVAL and against the children's will as they 
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cried and screamed while being drug by their wrist to be placed violently in an unfamiliar vehicle and 

driven away.  This is a direct violation to Paragraph “1” of sub-paragraph “b.” which states: 

“Both parties shall participate equally in the rights and responsibilities of legal custodians, 

including but not limited to decisions affecting the child’s legal status, medical care, 

education, extracurricular activities [EMPHASIS ADDED] and religious training.” 

     Kenneth Stoner then called Respondent to his cell phone in Las Vegas, Nevada and informed him of 

the details of the child abduction that occurred against his will at his residence. Respondent then 

contacted the Des Moines Police Department and the attached "Event" report #T14-0077841 was created 

as Exhibit “B.” 

     Respondent then contacted Ankeny Police Department to make a welfare child check for his minor 

custodial children were taken and held against their will at 413 NW Winterberry Street, Ankeny, Iowa  

50023.  While waiting for the return call from the Ankeny Police Department, Respondent contacted 

Doug M. Blum by phone that rang but was only able to leave a voice message, and then texted him as 

seen in Exhibit “C-1 thru C-3” which he did NOT reply to for over 18.5 hours that clearly exemplifies 

his attitude toward any responsibility for the TERROR SUBJECT UPON Respondent’s said minor 

children in which he included in his dialogue that the Respondent need not contact him but rather he 

should contact the Petitioner directly because he feels caught up in the middle and then communicated on 

behalf of and without providing any phone at all to Morgan Elizabeth Johnson-Hoffmann typing, 

“Morgan says her cell is in your car genius.” thus violating of Paragraph "8" on Page 5 which states: 

"The party shall ensure that calls are returned." 

     Upon Ankeny Police Departments arrival at the alleged abduction, "Event" report  #14–016255 was 

then created as Exhibit “D” in which included language from the interpretation of third-party, hearsay, 

inadmissible evidence (falsified testimony to a sworn Peace Officer) from Anika L. Blum, and/or her 

husband Doug M. Blum, that “FATHER HAS NOT BEEN FOLLOWING CUSTODY 

AGREEMENT” as declared as a matter of FACT in order to purposely cause DEFAMATION TO THE 

CHARACTER OF RESPONDENT IN A PUBLIC RECORD from a sworn peace officer and to further 
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potentially justify his NON-ACTION to effectively question any legal considerations to any and all 

consequences to refuse to intervene in the least bit even though absolutely no viable video surveillance 

tape, nor written, nor sworn verbal testimony based on any ASSUMED FACT, that could have possibly 

been produced, that was given to reference literally any section, paragraph, sub-paragraph or line of the 

current custody agreement contained therein.   

     Given these details, it is therefore concluded that Ankeny Police Department Officer Lopez, Badge 

#105, perhaps lost sight of his purpose to keep the peace and committed severe dereliction of his duty 

because it appears he was severely influenced by this purposeful delivery of false testimony in which the 

Respondent was provided absolutely no fair or equitable opportunity to rebut or clarify any allegation 

from the Blum’s description of Respondent’s character that was accepted as pure FACT.  Although 

Respondent was waiting patiently close by his phone 1,500 miles away with said custodial agreement in 

hand, no effort was made to request same of Respondent by electronic mail copy or facsimile for review 

to provide the responding law enforcement personnel in the field an accurate, verifiable information 

source to cause them to act in a more appropriate manner given the severity of the true nature of the 

potential crime that was in progress instead of the EMPHASIZED affirmation of STATED assumed 

indisputable yet unverifiable violation(s) as FACT found in “Exhibit “D.”   

     [An amendment to Exhibit “D” was made by Sgt. Braun on Tuesday, June 12, 2014 at the request of 

the Respondent who had to redirect her on several occasions to cause her to respect the distinction 

between “alleged” versus stated “FACT” to correct the inappropriate language chosen by Officer Lopez.  

Please see Exhibit “H.”] 

     Respondent then called to request to speak to an on duty supervisor of Ankeny Police Department in 

which Sgt. Figueroa, Badge #37, who also refused to intervene any further as he stated this circumstance 

was a civil matter and there is no jurisdiction and therefore no need to review any documentation 

pertaining to same whatsoever.  Sgt. Figueroa emphasized to Respondent he should do his best to enjoy 

his trip in Las Vegas and take care of business there because there truly wasn’t any issue to be concerned  

as both the Respondent and the Petitioner were both out of the State of Iowa at the time and the minor 
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children were considered “safe” by his personnel [who are ignorant to the potential actions of the 

Petitioner and her sister Anika L. Blum as exemplified here] because said minor children were with the 

only blood related relatives residing in the State of Iowa.  Sgt. Figueroa then terminated the phone 

conversation first. 

     On the morning of June 10, 201, Respondent again contacted Ankeny Police Department to request a 

second child welfare-check in which Sgt. Braun, Badge #45, called Respondent back approximately an 

hour later and stated that it was her understanding that said minor children were "OK" per Exhibit “F” 

and that in fact both minor children had airline tickets to fly to Portland, Oregon yet she refused to 

disclose any details as such information cannot be disclosed to even to the AGREED SOLE custodial 

parent.  This is in direct violation to Paragraph “1” of sub-paragraph “b.” which states: 

“Both parties shall participate equally in the rights and responsibilities of legal custodians, 

including but not limited to decisions affecting the child’s legal status, medical care, 

education, extracurricular activities [EMPHASIS ADDED] and religious training.” 

.  The refusal of any and all parties including the Petitioner to release any details whatsoever then places 

Petitioner and all others in contempt of court under Paragraph “1.”, sub-paragraph “a.” which states: 

“Both parties shall have access to information concerning the child [EMPHASIS ADDED], 

including but no limited to medical, educational, and law enforcement records.” 

Unhappy with the results, Respondent was abruptly hung-up upon by Sgt. Braun when she allegedly felt 

Respondent “over-reacted” to her perception verified by her inappropriate statements that the details 

pertaining to the matter described herein are essentially unimportant and mute and no action needs to 

executed to allegedly improve the safety and security of said minor custodial children who were 

scheduled to leave the State of Iowa against his will at an unknown time and date when it wasn’t even 

possible for him to be home with his minor children as arranged per the language of said decree in West 

Des Moines out of the jurisdiction of this uncooperative, unresponsive law enforcement agency and its 

personnel assigned to the city limits of Ankeny, Iowa. 
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     At approximately 10:30 AM PDT, Respondent then again attempted to contact Doug M. Blum at (515) 

371-4055 but was only able to leave a voicemail.  Moments later Respondent called Anika L.Blum, at 

(515) 669-0243 who answered politely yet immediately terminated the phone call when Respondent 

asked to speak to his daughter, Morgan E. Johnson-Hoffmann.  Respondent then called Anika L. Blum 

again and left a very detailed voicemail requesting immediate court ordered contact with his minor 

children advising she was in fact in direct violation of multiple sections of said court order and that she 

would be held fully accountable for her alleged criminal activity for her direct involvement in the careful 

abduction and execution of the FORCED removal of Respondent’s minor children against his will in the 

manner that she had while he was committed out of town on other important business details.  No return 

call was made nor was Respondent able to contact either his son or daughter in any way at all in direct 

violation of Paragraph "8" on Page 5 which states:.   

"The party shall ensure that calls are returned." 

Both said children were held captive against their will by Anika L. Blum and Doug M. Blum. Please see 

attached the text dialog between Respondent and Doug M. Blum as Exhibits “C-1” through C-3” 

     Respondent was then forced to make emergency notifications and appropriate modifications to 

rescheduled his work week and therefor cancel his “Train-the-Trainer" training course that had been 

arranged for months held in Kansas City with Durham School Services.  This training is mandatory for 

his job position as a Commercial Driving Instructor in Waukee, Iowa that he maintained the entire 2013-

2014 school year to more efficiently provide for his family yet was forced to go through the effort and 

significant expense to purchase an emergency airline ticket to Portland, Oregon in hopes of seeing his 

custodial children there though he was still had no verification whatsoever which day let alone the time 

his children would arrive that remained in violation to Paragraph “1” of sub-paragraph “b.” which states: 

“Both parties shall participate equally in the rights and responsibilities of legal custodians, 

including but not limited to decisions affecting the child’s legal status, medical care, 

education, extracurricular activities [EMPHASIS ADDED] and religious training.” 
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     On Tuesday, June 10, at 11:17 AM PDT, Respondent’s text request to Petitioner to speak to Morgan 

Elizabeth Johnson-Hoffmann was again ignored as it has countless times in direct violation of Paragraph 

"8" on Page 5 which states:.   

"The party shall ensure that calls are returned." 

Respondent emphasizes this stipulation has been violated countless times over the years as he was forced 

to buy his eight (8) year old daughter a cell phone to attempt to circumvent the repeated, regular 

noncompliance to the above reference of Petitioner to assist court ordered communication with his son 

and daughter as directed.  Please see Exhibit “E-1” through ”E-3.”   

     Petitioner then arrived in Portland at approximately 2:00 PM PDT on June 10, 2014 and received a 

text from Doug M. Blum who requested a return call via text.  See Exhibits “G-1” through “G-5.”  

During the conversation Doug M. Blum stated said children were unavailable for a phone conversation as 

they were already on an airplane en route to Denver at the time where they were going to meet up with 

the Petitioner there and all three would fly together to Portland. Oregon. 

    Please note also that Doug M. Blum emphasized it was his very clear and concise understanding that 

from the verbal testimony of both Petitioner, DeeAnn Ray Johnson and his wife, Anika L. Blum, that if 

DeeAnn Ray Johnson were to expire at any time before either one or both child(ren) become(s) the age of 

18, that he IN FACT he Doug M. Blum SHALL obtain FULL custody of Respondent’s said minor 

children and that he honestly believed such documentation truly exists. Respondent requested Doug M. 

Blum produce said documentation but Blum refused to comply with no rational explanation whatsoever. 

      At approximately 7:05 PM on June 10, 2014 Petitioner, DeeAnn Rae Johnson escorted both said 

minor children Morgan Elizabeth Johnson-Hoffmann and Noah Christian Johnson-Hoffmann (while 

under tight video surveillance of  the informed Portland Airport Police Department as they passed through 

the main terminal security exit way and were met in loving arms and the verbal communication by 

Respondent that he was very happy to see his minor children limiting the communication regarding the 

serious misunderstanding created by the contemptuous, clandestine activities of Petitioner. 
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     Both children were extremely excited to see their father yet Petitioner stood in place in total disbelief.  

Respondent lovingly held both said minor children’s hands and reminded them that he will NEVER leave 

them or live far away from them and will always make every effort be together with them no matter what.  

Petitioner, DeeAnn Ray Johnson, then put both children into the vehicle she was responsible for with 

State of Oregon license plate #424 DHX and drove them to her new residence at 1191 Winter St. NE, 

Salem, OR. 97301. 

     On June 11, at approximately 9:00 AM Respondent arrived at 1191 Winter St. NE., Salem, OR, 

knocked on the front door and was greeted by his son, Noah Christian Hoffmann-Johnson, who again was 

very excited to see his father.  However, Morgan Johnson-Hoffmann, came out but NOT until many 

minutes later to speak with Respondent on the front porch but was EXTREMELY DISPONDENT, SAD, 

AND DISTANT unlike he had ever witnessed her to be at any time in her life with him.   

     For the record, there is therefore an EXTREME concern for Morgan Elizabeth Johnson-Hoffmann’s 

mental well-being due to the potential serious mental anguish subjected upon her through the coerced 

manipulation by Petitioner to further destroy the credibility of Respondent as exemplified by Anika L. 

Blum and her husband Doug M. Blum did to manipulate the law enforcement officer(s) with the Ankeny 

Police Department.  It is felt that both Noah Christian Johnson-Hoffmann but especially Morgan 

Elizabeth Johnson-Hoffmann need to be IMMEDIATELY REMOVED from this potential HOSTILE 

living environment caused by the exemplified irrational behavior of Petitioner at the above referenced 

address to prevent any further potential mental anguish caused by potential conflicting messages 

communicated by Petitioner regarding the true reality of the current situation in violation of Paragraph 

“1”, sub-paragraph “e” on Page 2 that states: 

“Each of the parties shall act to foster feelings of affection and respect between the child and the 

other party, and neither will do anything which may ESTRANGE [EMPHASIS ADDED] the 

child from the other party or impair the child’s high regard for the other party.”. 

      After visiting for approximately 20 minutes on the front porch with both children, Respondent 

attempted to make tentative plans with Petitioner to have dinner with both children later that evening but 
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Petitioner made the general statement that the kids were going to be busy.  After making several 

documented unsuccessful attempts during the day of June 11, 2014 to speak to said children via text and 

voicemail on Petitioner’s cell phone, Petitioner finally answered her phone at approximately 5:00 PM and 

stated she was not going to allow Respondent to see the children any time soon and for the first time in 

Morgan Johnson-Hoffmann's life, she refused to talk to Petitioner.  This is especially concerning to the 

Respondent as the urgency to act has never been more evident than now due to the severe behavior 

change of Morgan E. Johnson-Hoffmann since she has been in the presence of the Petitioner. 

     For the record, it is sworn under penalty of perjury that Morgan Elizabeth Johnson-Hoffmann on 

Saturday, June 7, 2014 stated as a mere matter of fact, “I really do not care if I don’t see my Mommy for 

an entire year or not.  I don’t want to be with her.”  This was followed by, “Daddy, I do NOT want to 

move to Oregon ever!” 

     Given the extreme nature of the current situation,  it is further hereby requested by the Respondent to 

the court that an immediate action to ENFORCE WRIT OF ASSISTANCE  - Case #14C31598 be 

executed by the Marion County Sheriff’s Department filed in the IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE 

STATE OF OREGON FOR THE COUNTY OF MARION on July 2, 2014 to remove both minor 

children from this HOSTILE living environment without further delay until it can be proven and verified 

Petitioner is not in violation of Paragraph “1.” Sub-paragraph “e.” on Page #2 at 1191 Winter St. NE., 

Salem, OR 97301 WITHOUT FURTHER DELAY.  The Respondent appreciates any and all assistance 

provided by the court to see Morgan Elizabeth Johnson-Hoffmann and Noah Christian Johnson-

Hoffmann are returned safely to their familiar environment in West Des Moines, Iowa which provides an 

extremely stable supportive living environment and solid predictable structure created and maintained by 

the Respondent to facilitate the mental well-being of both with all their loving friends whom they have 

established loving relationships with over several years which is currently nearly 1900 miles away. 

    Additionally, for the record, I contacted Lt. Huggins, Badge #41, who also refused to hear any 

argument at all that the Ankeny Police Department had any responsibility at all to request a copy of said 

stipulation BEFORE said minor children were violently removed from their stable, loving environment 
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with their life long loving family friend, Kenneth Stoner, who also cried as the Anika L. Blum and 

Deborah L. Eastwood FORCEBLY REMOVED both minor children without warning, THREATENED 

BY SHEER INTIMIDATION both into the car, and drove off to an (at the time) unknown location, with 

both minor children who were screaming in the rear seat of the alleged abductor’s vehicle absolutely 

terrified, confused, and extremely sad from the violence subjected upon them from these incredibly 

VIOLENT ACTIONS CONSPIRED AND DIRECTED BY THE PETITIONER and HOSTILE 

experience again in violation of Paragraph “1,” Sub-paragraph “e.,” on Page #2 listed above.  

     As a result of the evidence presented herein and attached, it is requested of the court that there be a 

FULL custody arrangement change from joint-custody of said minor children to FULL custody of said 

minor children be granted to the Respondent with the stipulation that the Petitioner is only permitted 

SUPERVISED visitation given her instability and inability to act appropriately as a prudent, rational adult 

who’s commitment is to provide the emotional, spiritual, and mental stability of said minor children 

without the desire to take advantage of situations against her written and spoken word like she did during 

the Respondent’s 1,500 mile absence and therefore his inability to effectively enforce the current court 

order to protect his family from the above referenced violent, terrifying, abduction and resulting mental 

anguish experienced by two (2) unknowing, innocent children who are presently caught up in this 

environment against their will.  It is further requested the court do all it can to PROTECT HIS 

CHILDREN FROM THIS PURPOSELY SUBJECTED TERROR inflicted by the Petitioner onto said 

minor children.   

     It is further requested that the mandated Child Support obligation to be reversed from the 

Respondent’s responsibility to the Petitioner’s responsibility accordingly and paid at a rate based on her 

potential earnings regardless of her employment status upon the court’s resolution of this matter in order 

to maintain and sustain the life style that both minor children have become accustomed. 

     Additionally, for the record as FACT sworn under penalty of perjury, I hereby affirm and let it be 

known that Petitioner left the State of California and thus ABANDONED her two ( 2½) and a half month 

old infant son, Noah C. Johnson-Hoffmann and her 15 month old infant daughter, Morgan Elizabeth 
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Johnson-Hoffmann in December 2006 when she moved herself and her older son, Tyler James Johnson, 

born April 16, 1998 in with the above referenced Anika L. Blum and her husband Doug M. Blum at 413 

NW Winterberry Street, Ankeny, Iowa  5002. Verifiable admissible evidence is captured in YouTube 

video at  https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=xi3aojRIlsA   

This ABANDONMENT of both said infants with Respondent to raise to provide 24/7 care on his 

own as a single father on medical disability.  Although Petitioner sent no child support to Respondent 

during these three (3) months until mid-March 2007 when Respondent paid all flight costs to deliver said 

children to Petitioner in Iowa, Respondent immediately began to send approximately $700.00 per month 

which was approximately $120.00 more than the current child support calculation formula verified would 

be appropriate.  

     Further, the original order that became effective September 1, 2007 enforcing child support against 

Respondent at $1,600.00 per month, the Respondent is fully aware he did in fact sign such court ordered 

Decree, but did so under EXTREME DURESS from the verbal threat and alleged misrepresentation 

executed on said motion generated by Petitioner AND her attorney Jonathon A. Coy that submitted to this 

court as FACT that Respondent earned EXACTLY $6,660.40 per month and therefor ALLEGEDLY 

EXACTLY $127,200.00 per year upon Respondent’s DISABILITY RETIREMENT.  After attempting to 

correct this FALSIFIED TESTIMONY for nearly 30 days with Petitioner and Jonathon A. Coy, Attorney, 

Respondent IN FACT “…WAS forced, pressured, AND IN FACT advised me (Respondent) to sign 

this Decree.”  to REVERSE INTRIPULATE the $1,600.00 per month MANDATORY child support 

obligation. 

     At the time said motion was served upon Respondent, he had been living on a Non-Industrial (non-

work related) Disability Retirement (after serving the people of the State of California from June 1979) 

which commenced in May 2000 in which he finished his career upon promoting to Acting Fire 

Chief/Correctional Fire Captain/Peace Officer at the Avenal State Prison facility in Avenal, California.  

The amount of income that Petitioner had her attorney Jonathon Coy submit as a record as FACT in your 

court of law stated that Respondent earned nearly $100,000.00 more than he actually did in the tax year 
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2006.  Respondent tried to negotiate with Petitioner regarding this incredibly inflated misrepresentation 

that can be easily disputed with the verifiable tax records of the Internal Revenue Service this date, but  

became evident very quickly that any attempt to do so was futile as Petitioner refused to cooperate at all. 

     During the second week in August 2007, Petitioner’s final threat to Respondent was, “If you don’t 

sign this Decree to pay me the $1,600.00 per month I feel myself and your children are entitled to, I 

remind you now that I have an 1,800 mile head start on you and you will NEVER SEE YOUR 

CHILDREN EVER AGAIN!”  She further stated, “I will change my last name, your children’s last 

names to render us to all be untraceable, and they will be told that you are dead and gone years 

ago!” She finished by stating, “Now sign it or else!”  She then demanded all payments to her be made by 

me personally depositing moneys into her accounts as indicated on the attached spreadsheet titled, “Child 

Support Payments - Richard Hoffmann v DeeAnn R. Johnson - DRCV-37370” as Exhibit “I-1” and “I-

2”. 

     Given the Respondent has all the tax records to prove his position that he didn’t earn nearly 

four (4X) times his ACTUAL income after becoming medically retired as a Correctional Fire 

Captain/Peace Officer in May 2000, Respondent complied with the Petitioner’s THREAT AND 

DEMAND and therefor signed UNDER SEVERE DURESS the documentation as the record shows 

today just so he could keep the kids in a town he knew he could find them in. Respondent paid every extra 

penny he could muster on airline tickets to fly out to Des Moines, Iowa every four (4) to five (5) weeks 

thereafter for an additional 20 months to MAINTAIN AND NURTURE the relationships he now has that 

are extremely very well established with both said loving children until he lost his four bedroom home in 

foreclosure in late November of 2008. He then relocated from Sacramento, California to Ankeny, Iowa 

and did his best to be in the children’s lives every day as he does today while he addresses this matter 

effectively to create and file this document from Salem, Oregon which is filed this date electronically in 

Des Moines, Iowa Monday, July 7, 2014.  
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In October 2010, Petitioner then reported to the Child Support Recovery of the State of Iowa and 

presented FALSE TESTIMONY again that Respondent had paid ZERO ($0.00) child support whatsoever 

to her (not the documented verifiable $29,003.29 that the Respondent ACTUALLY did pay) since the 

original decree that included the original FALSE TESTIMONY that Respondent earned nearly 

$100,000.00 more than he actually did at EXACTLY $6,660.40 per month and therefor EXACTLY 

$127,200.00 [Exhibit X-1 thru X-9].  Child Support Recovery did their duty and levied over $58,000.00 

in child support arrearages that instantly put his commercial driver’s license and any and all real property 

including his van in jeopardy. The attached spreadsheet [Exhibit I-1 and I-2] clearly indicates during 

Mediation in April 2011, when Petitioner was represented by legal counsel, Respondent was only able to 

reduce the over $62,000 in child support arrearages down to $4,000.00 through heavy negotiations yet the 

record shows, based on FALSIFIED SWORN TESTIMONY that she AND her attorney Jonathon Coy 

KNOWINGLY CONSPIRED IN ORDER TO DECEIVE THIS COURT, when ACCURATELY 

mathematically calculated as it is in said spreadsheet, Petitioner actually OWES Respondent $3,405.29. 

Given the difference between what the Petitioner actually OWES and the amount the Respondent was 

personally found responsible by MANIPULATED COERCION in mediation April 11, 2011, the 

DELIBERATE FALSE TESTIMONY OF PETITIONER AND ATTORNEY JONATHON A. COY 

yielded a net profit for Petitioner of $7,405.29 by PURE EXTORTION upon presentment of FALSE 

SWORN TESTIMONY.  

Respondent filed a formal complaint against Attorney Jonathon A. Coy on January 20, 2011 and 

completed  and submitted THE IOWA SUPREME COURT ATTORNEY DISCIPLINARY BOARD 

COMPLAINT FORM dated February 2, 2011.  Although the attached ADMISSIBLE EVIDENCE is 

overwhelming, Jonathon A. Coy, Attorney was found NOT GUILTY of any and all details contained in 

said complaint filed.  

Finally, Paragraph 4 on Page #4, Respondent requests the court to eliminate this language here 

altogether as this too was a demand by the Petitioner placed on the table that she refused to negotiate to 

further destroy the Respondent’s credibility based on third-party, hearsay, inadmissible falsified evidence 
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that she and only she could insist was true. Absolutely no documentation in any form from any 

psychologist’s or psychiatrist’s alleged evaluation that ever occurred within any reasonable time frame 

was submitted to DEMAND the entry of same in the current decree. In fact, Petitioner herself has been 

TREATED for years for multiple psychological mental conditions requiring MEDICATION and 

COUNSELING INTERVENTION that she has instead demanded the Respondent disclose as an alleged 

serious mental condition, THOUGH NONE HAS EVER BEEN DIAGNOSED, in yet another attempt to 

CANCEL AND ELIMINATE Respondent’s access to Respondent’s minor children upon the deliberate 

submission of third party, hearsay, inadmissible FALSE TESTIMONY as evidence to manipulate and 

leverage the level playing field attempted in said mediation session.  

The written testimony above should clear the record of the Respondent given the verifiably, 

deliberate, coercive FALSE TESTIMONY upon him and his two (2) minor said children who have 

SUFFERED greatly again due to the TERROR subjected upon all parties yet again this week including 

incredible UNVERIFIABLE FALSE TESTIMONY in court as recently as 11:00 AM on July 3, 2014 in 

Court Room 3A. It is hereby requested to the court that Petitioner be immediately evaluated before she is 

granted SUPERVISED VISITATION ONLY. Respondent invites any court to demand he be evaluated if 

any such court prefers this action to be executed upon him as well.  Not included at the time of the 

submission this date is VERIFIABLE EVIDENCE Respondent has NO DIAGNOSED 

PSYCHOLOGICAL CONDITION WHATSOEVER (INCONCLUSIVE) that requires any medication 

nor any counseling intervention. 

Respondent therefor requests the court take IMMEDIATE action to direct the THIRD DISTRICT 

COURT OF OREGON, MARION COUNTY to enforce the “WRIT OF ASSISTANCE” filed on July 2, 

2014 as early as possible for the SAFETY AND SECURITY of said minor children.  Writ of Assistance 

based on the following facts:  
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1. ) I am entitled to immediate possession of the following personal property:  MORGAN 

ELIZABETH JOHNSON-HOFFMANN, born September 13, 2005, and NOAH CHRISTIAN 

JOHNSON-HOFFMANN, born October 5, 2006,  

     Per the CLEAR VIOLATION of the irrefutable language of the current order DRCV-37370 

ORDER MODIFYING DECREE ESTABLISHING PATERNITY, CUSTODY, CHILD 

SUPPORT AND VISITATION on file IN THE IOWA DISTRICT COURT IN AND FOR POLK 

COUNTY on Page 4, paragraph 3, line "j" specifically states, "Any other times as agreed upon 

by the parties or in writing WITH 72 HOURS [EMPHASIS ADDED] notice if not agreed."  

Petitioner, with only three (3) hours notice to Respondent and therefor sixty nine (69) hours 

in advance of the MINIMUM court ordered time limit to change the AGREED plans as 

verified in the attached text dialog on June 8, 2014 Exhibit “A1” in which the Respondent 

communicated to Petitioner AS REQUIRED by said court ordered decree the childcare 

arrangements set for both said minor children for the week of  June 9, 2014 from 1200 hrs. on 

Monday, June 9, 2014 through the morning hours of Saturday, June 14, 2014 followed by the 

text dialog of June 9, 2014, which was initiated at 2:24 PM PDT by the Petitioner, within and 

of Exhibit “A2 thru A-9” that includes the text, “I’m going to get them this week then.”  

[Petitioner had every right to enforce this at any time AFTER the effective time of 2:25 PM 

PDT on Thursday, June 12, 2014]  

2.) The court order granting me possession of the above property is attached to and incorporated by 

this affidavit.  

3.) Petitioner has failed to deliver possession of the property to me as described per the attached 

NOTORIZED AND ENTERED DRCV-37370 ORDER MODIFYING DECREE 

ESTABLISHING PATERNITY, CUSTODY, CHILD SUPPORT AND VISITATION on file IN 

THE IOWA DISTRICT COURT IN AND FOR POLK COUNTY stamped at 1:26 PM on 

May 11, 2011 as Exhibit “J-1 thru J-7.”  It is requested of the Court to review literally 
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every detail described in the attached documents including the text dialog directed from the 

Petitioner to the AGREED childcare provider, Kenneth Stoner, of 1212 Southlawn Drive, 

Des Moines, Iowa  50315 [where the alleged violation occurred when both children were 

removed from this residence by Anika L. Blum of 413 NW Winterberry Street, Ankeny, 

Iowa and her alleged accomplice Deborah L. Eastwood of 4232 65th Street, Urbandale, Iowa] 

at 1012 hrs. CDT on June 9, 2014 including the dialog in Exhibit “K-1 and K-2”:  

“Kenny I had 3 calls from softball parents last night that are very concerned for Morgan and 

Noah. Will you please let my friend [allegedly Deborah L. Eastwood of 4232 65th Street, 

Urbandale, IA 50322 at (309) 269-3089] have the kids – she will put them on a plane and 

I will meet them in Denver.  Please!  They aren’t ok with Rich.” 

 

  Please also review the attached email [Exhibit “L-1 and L-2”] from DeeAnn Rae Johnson from 

deeann.johnson@wellsfargo.com on Monday, June 16, 2014 4:34 pm after Respondent 

implied he would file the attached E-FILED PETITION FOR MODIFICATION at 1205 hrs. 

Tuesday, June 17, 2014, if Petitioner didn’t respond and confirm to the requests contained 

therein refused to comply with current order in the manner contained and detailed therein.  

The Petitioner states,  

 “Bottom line I have primary physical care of Morgan and Noah.  I’m filing a 

restraining order.  You might get to see Morgan and Noah a year from now.” 

 Petitioner HAS a valid Restraining order against the Respondent per the third party, hearsay, 

inadmissible allegations contained therein in “IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE STATE OF 

OREGON COUNTY OF MARION, CASE NO:  14C31598.  Under penalty of perjury of and within 

the Laws of the State of Iowa and the State of Oregon,  Respondent hereby declares all allegations 

are exaggerated false, third party, hearsay, inadmissible testimony evidence, just as evidenced in the 

flagrant false testimony in the attachments contained herein, are intended solely to destroy 
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Respondent’s credibility and place all law enforcement agencies in two separate States on alert that 

Respondent should be considered a viable THREAT TO HIS CHILDREN, THE PETITIONER, 

PETTIONER’S SISTER ANIKA L. BLUM, AND HER FRIEND [ALLEGED ACCOMPLICE TO 

THE ALLEGED ABDUCTION] DEBORAH L. EASTWOOD.  Respondent expresses extreme 

empathy for the innocent yet, and very rightfully so, extremely disturbed staff of the Salem-Keizer 

Education Foundation Camp who are hoping and praying every day that a six foot, four inch, 255 

pound “CHILD ABDUCTOR/KILLER” Respondent doesn’t come busting though the door to 

allegedly “ABDUCT” his children Noah Christian and Morgan Elizabeth Johnson-Hoffmann while 

they remain at this facility during Petitioner’s work hours.   

For the record, Mark Seyfried, Detective Corporal, Badge #S137 of the Salem Police 

Department, Salem, Oregon, STATES THAT HE, Mark Seyfried, as a sworn peace officer, 

ALLEGEDLY WITNESSED the verbal testimony of Respondent state to him, even though 

Respondent showed the request for a “WRIT OF ASSISTANCE” request of the Marion County 

Sheriff’s Department by Respondent who E-Filed IN THE IOWA DISTRICT COURT IN AND FOR 

POLK COUNTY at 3:37 PM on June 13, 2014 as titled, “PETITION FOR MODIFICATION… 

AND WRIT OF ASSISTANCE,” Corporal Detective Mark Seyfried, Badge #S137 stated in his 

report, “I contacted Richard and he again alluded to the fact that HE WOULD ABDUCT 

“RESCUE” HIS CHILDREN.”  The Detective Corporal, S137, is therefor DERELICT OF DUTY 

to NOT place Respondent on an IMMEDIATE MANDATORY 72 HOUR PSYCHOLOGICAL 

EVALUATION HOLD as a result of this alleged RISK TO THE SAFETY AND WELL BEING 

OF SAID MINOR CHILDREN AS HE, M SEYFRIED, BADGE #S137, INDICATED UNDER 

PENALTY OF PERJURY ON PUBLIC RECORD “SMP14022717” generated and filed within the 

Salem Police Department Records department on June 16, 2014 as Exhibit M-1 thru M-7.” 

Among other countless incredible misrepresentations and false, inaccurate entries committed 

by M. Seyfired, Badge #S137, also states, “He [Respondent] told me his ex-wife [RESPONDENT 
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EMPHASIZED TO DETECTIVE CORPORAL THAT PETITIONER AND RESPONDENT 

WERE NEVER MARRIED [EMPHASIS ADDED!], Deeann Johnson, moved from Iowa three 

weeks ago, taking their two children, Morgan and Noah.” and also stated in his reference to the 

only unnotarized, unsigned copy of the custody agreement, from Iowa, entered May 18, 2011, that 

the Respondent requested Detective Corporal Mark Seyfried, S137 read out loud Page 4, Paragraph 

3, Line “j.” further states in his report,  “He pointed out one section and asked me to read it 

outloud. It essentially said that Deeann would have to notify him of any changes of visitation 

WITHIN 72 HOURS.” [EMPHASIS ADDED!] …as clear evidence of dereliction of duty to 

record written, let alone verbal testimony accurately in said “Incident Report –Disturbance” 

SMP1422717 when respondent was only requesting the staff at said childcare facility to add his name 

to the emergency contact list so Respondent could visit children as the current decree provides as 

required by said facility established regulations.  Please see supporting video evidence regarding 

Respondents conduct found at https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=0Y4FaNQpPv0  which is ebbed 

into the website:  www.iowaoregonabduciton.com.   

Respondent has video evidence on his camera of him engaged in a conversation with the staff 

at said childcare facility, peacefully leaving Respondent’s Iowa Department of Transportation 

Commercial Driver’s License on the table, and then peacefully exiting the premises as 

ADMISSIBLE EVIDENCE in this court of law.  The third party hearsay, inadmissible extremely 

exaggerated verbal testimony from the Petitioner IN THE PRESENCE OF SAID MINOR 

CHILDREN directed to the childcare staff caused extreme anxiety of all said Salem-Keizer 

Education Foundation Camp staff members who prudently immediately secured the facility doors to 

keep Respondent away from staff and children within.  THIS IS A DIRECT VIOLATION OF 

CURRENT ORDER found at Paragraph “1”, sub-paragraph “e” on Page 2 that states: 
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“Each of the parties shall act to foster fellings of affection and respect between the child and the 

other party, and neither will do anything which may ESTRANGE [EMPHASIS ADDED] the 

child from the other party or impair the child’s high regard for the other party.” 

Terra Naught immediately and prudently summoned the assistance of law enforcement by 

calling Emergency 911 but was unable to speak over the sound of the children within the facility.  

She exited said facility in which Respondent video recorded his interaction with this subject again as 

to be presented as admissible evidence.  Subject requested Respondent not video record her, but 

Respondent informed her of his right to do so and further stated, “You are using third party 

hearsay, inadmissible evidence to prevent me from seeing my kids.”  Subject implied she wasn’t, 

Respondent stated she was, and then stood there on the sidewalk to allow subject to safely exit the 

area to the west on the sidewalk proceeding over 50 feet to the west entrance of Grant School at 725 

Market Street NE, Salem, Oregon  97301.  Please refer also to:  

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=6EGPzwK-FEs which is ebbed into the website:  

www.iowaoregonabduciton.com.   

Respondent then walked west nearly 100 feet from Salem-Keizer Education Foundation 

Camp main entrance to help eliminate any the CONCERN OF ANY RISK TO THE SAFETY OF 

CHILDREN AND STAFF within said facility, sat peacefully on an exterior bench, and summoned 

the Salem Police Department via the non-emergency number, NOT TO OBSTRUCT any possible 

911 call from any other citizen within the city limits of Salem, Oregon to request a peace officer to 

report to his location to SAFELY recover his Iowa government issued Commercial Drivers License 

now in the possession of said staff at said facility.  It was at the time that Respondent was finally able 

to talk to a dispatcher/operator after being on hold for several minutes that Respondent terminated the 

call as a result of the arrival of Detective Corporal Mark Seyfried, S137 as recorded in all 

communication with Salem Police Department dispatch records and phone logs. 
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The Respondent affirms there are many more misrepresentations and false testimony 

erroneous and inaccurate recorded entries to list here as sworn written testimony of an alleged peace 

officer Detective Corporal Mark Seyfried, S137.  For the record Detective Corporal Mark Seyfried, 

S137, recorded the following SWORN TESTIMONY within Exhibit “M-1 thru M-7”: 

1. Nowhere on report does it mention “Salem-Keizer Education Foundation Camp” as 

the place of said incident. 

2. Last name misspelled as HoffmaN, not as recorded on Iowa Commercial Drivers 

License as HoffmaNN 

3. Respondent’s apartment number as #44, not as recorded on Iowa Commercial Drivers 

License as APT. #436.  This is only an error of 392 apartments away from 

Respondents ACCURATE address. 

4. WEIGHT under estimated by 40 pounds as Respondent actually weighs 255 pounds. 

5. HEIGHT as “6ft06in,” not as recorded on Iowa Commercial Drivers License as 

“6ft04in” 

6. Business phone number to Krina Lemons as Bus #: (503) 860-4840 is listed as 

Lauren Jones Home #: (503) 860-4840 AND Terra Naught Bus #: (503) 860-4840.  

Respondent attempted to call Bus #: (503) 860-4840 to speak and reassure said minor 

children, but this phone number actually rings to Lauren Jones Cell #: (503) 860-

4840.  For the record the actual contact for said establishment is: Bus #: (503) 

364-2933.  Absolutely NO entry exists anywhere in said “Incident Report – 

Disturbance” 

7. Narrative Paragraph 1, line 4, states, “She said he demanded to see them.  She 

reported that Richard “got in the face” of Terra Naught.”  Respondent did see 

them but left peacefully immediately upon leaving his Iowa Commercial Drivers 

license on the table as VIDEO RECOREDED EVIDENCE 
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https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=0Y4FaNQpPv0 and 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=6EGPzwK-FEs found at 

www.iowaoregonabduciton.com 

8. Paragraph 2, line 4:  Respondent acknowledges the written documentation contained 

herein submitted to an investigative reporter MAY cause, “…TV cameras here later.”  

Respondent refutes ANY STATEMENT MADE BY RESPONDENT that infers, “He 

[RESPONDENT] told me that his ex-wife [RESPONDENT EMPHASIZED 

RESPONDENT AND PETITIONER WERE NEVER MARRIED], Deeann 

Johnson, moved from Iowa three weeks ago, TAKING THEIR TWO 

CHILDREN, MORGAN AND NOAH.”  When incident report #SMP14022717 

“REVIEWED/APPROVED BY” Sgt. Gordon Albert, S245, arrived on scene, Sgt. 

Gordon Albert, S245, stated to Respondent, “You may have broken a law by flying 

from Las Vegas to Portland.”  Respondent asks the court why would said Sgt. 

Gordon Albert, S245, ever “APPROVED BY” entry in said incident report if he in 

fact made such a statement to Respondent but especially as a free citizen of the 

United States with no restraining order enforceable at the time? 

9. Paragraph 3, lines 3 and 4 refers to Respondent requesting Detectivee Corporal M. 

Seyfried, S137, to read out loud verbiage of the current order found on Page 4, 

Paragraph 3, sub-paragraph “j.”  Said alleged peace officer states, “It essentially said 

that Deeann would have to notify him of any changes of visitation WITHIN 

72 HOURS.” 

10. Paragraph 4, line 1, states, “…Richard was not on the point of contact list for 

Morgan and Noah, and until he was, they would not allow him to enter the 
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school and have contact with the children.”  Respondent affirms he stated to 

alleged peace officer M. Seyfried, S137, that that was the whole point of the visit. 

11. Paragraph 5, line 1, states, “I contacted Deeann who said she moved from Iowa to 

Salem about 3 weeks ago WITH HER CHILDREN and she was getting 

REmarried.”  Respondent asserts this is FALSE TESTIMONY TO A SWORN 

PEACE OFFICER as evidenced by ADMISSIBLE photographic and video 

EVIDENCE found at www.iowaoregonabduction.com and 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3_rD-N9yeuo in which the file PROPERTIES 

[Exhibit “N”] prove it was taken on “Tuesday, June 10, 2014, 7:08:16 PM” as 

videotaped while under tight video  surveillance at the Portland International Airport 

in which Port of Portland Police Department created CAD report #PA14-10509 

[Exhibit “O-1 and O-2”] in which the report was closed at 18:59:37 hours, nearly 

eight (8) full minutes PRIOR to the ACTUAL exit of said subjects.  Small children 

walking slowly a great distance from Frontier Airlines, Gate C-22, upon likely using 

the facilities along the way.  

12. Paragraph 5, line 4, states, “…Richard made comments to a Dairy Queen 

employee that there WOULD BE a child abduction SOON.”  Alleged peace 

officer M. Seyfried never interviewed Respondent for clarification in which 

Respondent admits he mentioned to said Dairy Queen staff that his children HAD 

BEEN abducted per the details contained herein.  Silverton Police Department did 

contact Respondent directly on June 15, 2014 at 1346 hours while sitting on a bench 

in front of Mac’s Place on Water Street in Silverton, Oregon, to discuss the details of 

this matter and created Incident Report #2014-00003220 [Exhibit “P-1 thru P-4”] 

that includes in the narrative on page 3, paragraph 3, line 4 states, “Richard 
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continued by telling me his ex-wife, Deeann Johnson (DOB: 7-4-69) had her 

sister take their mutual children without his knowledge.”  The incident report also 

includes in page 3, paragraph 4, on line 8, states, “Richard told me he was creating 

a website so people could watch when the police took his kids away from 

Deeann.” and later states on page 3, paragraph 7, line 5, “I told Richard the things 

he was telling people was scaring them.  Richard told me he understood and 

would keep his conversations with people low key.”  The last reference to said 

incident report is on page 4, paragraph 2 that states, “Due to the two separate 

suspicious activity calls reported to me in addition to Richard’s behavior while 

speaking to him, I am forwarding this report to Marion County Deputy, Kevin 

Rau.”  For the record, immediately upon requesting said report from Silverton Police 

Department records division, Respondent immediately voluntarily reported to 

Sheriff’s Deputy Kevin Rau at 1645 hours in the Marion County Courthouse on June 

23, 2014 to discuss the details contained herein and requested his direction for 

assistance provided within the County of Marion.  Respondent thus reported to the 

Acute Behavior Services for Marion County at 1118 Oak Street SE, Salem, Oregon 

on both the evening of June 23, 2014 [Exhibit “Q-1 thru Q-6”] upon the assessment 

of Masters in Counseling, Maria Pos, and again on June 29, 2014 to report the risk of 

MENTAL CHILD ABUSE [Exhibit “R-1 thru R-4”] to Stacey A. Caraballow, MS, 

CADCII, QMPH due to the probably mental trauma and anguish subjected upon said 

children from Petitioner for all events reported herein as a mandatory reporting 

agency to DHS of Oregon at 4600 25th Avenue NE, Salem.  For the record, 

Respondent reported to DHS of Oregon at the above address on Tuesday, July 1, 

2014 to open an active case for said children.  DHS of Oregon informed Respondent 

that said agency will request all records from Iowa DHS including FOUNDED 
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CHILD ABUSE attached herein committed by Petitioner dated July 16, 2013 as 

Incident Number 2013-190045 as Exhibit “S-1 thru S-7.” For the record 

Respondent witnessed another incident that occurred to Morgan Elizabeth Johnson-

Hoffmann who was struck on the side of the head by Petitioner upon pulling 

Petitioner’s arm all the way back, and with a full swing, struck the side of Morgan’s 

head upon Morgan stating a FACT that made Petitioner accountable for her actions 

thereof.  As there was no mark [left ear was red for 30 minutes, ear “rang” for nearly 

five (5) hours], the “event” was therefor “UNFOUNDED” by Iowa DHS standards as 

seen in Exhibit “T.” 

13. Page 3, paragraph 1 states, “Deeann said Richard had not provided proof of 

psychiatric treatment and had thus broken the custody agreement.”  Alleged 

peace officer M. Seyfried, S137, never asked Respondent for clarification regarding 

this detail in which Respondent’s last appointment with his Psychologist, Dr. Clint 

Royston was in October 2013.  It was determined by the BOTH Dr. Clint Royston 

AND the Respondent that due to the many improvements in Respondent’s personal 

life working fulltime as said minor children’s assigned school bus driver both 

morning and afternoon routes, that no further appointments were to be scheduled 

until further notice.  Respondent  has been diagnosed as NOT Bipolar as alleged by 

Petitioner to any and all concerned parties in an effort to destroy Respondent’s 

personal character and credibility (inconclusive per an extensive evaluation during 

summer of 2011) AFTER said enforcement of said current order effective May 18, 

2011 in which Petitioner, with absolutely no documentation to justify same from any 

psychiatric care provider during mediation of April 11, 2011, with her attorney 

present, INSISTED THIS FALSE TESTIMONY BE ENTERED delaying the 

proceeding until so.  Mediator Kimberly Stamastelos insisted Respondent approve 
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said entry but after Respondent was THREATENED by said mediator who stated she 

would write as she saw fit due to the significant delay to her next appointment, 

Respondent felt COERCED AND PRESSURED UNDER SEVERE DURESS to 

include same in which Petitioner has used many times to prevent court ordered 

visitation.  Other atrocities regarding this alleged mediation session of April 18, 2011 

is referred to in Exhibit “I-1 and I-2” as verified by the “DECREE 

ESTABLISHING PATERNITY, CUSTODY, CHILD SUPPORT AND 

VISITATION RIGHTS in Exhibit “X-1 thru X-9.” 

14. Page 3, paragraph 1, line 6 states, “She was upset that we would not take 

preemptive action on Richard…”  For the record, as alleged peace officer M. 

Seyfried, S137 stated on page 3, paragraph 2, line 1 states, “I contacted Richard 

and he AGAIN alluded to the fact that he would ABDUCT “RESCUE” his 

children.”  Respondent not only had alleged peace officer M.Seyfried, S137 read out 

loud the title of the “PETITION FOR MODIFICATION OF CUSTODY, CHILD 

SUPPORT, AND CHILD VISITATION RIGHTS AND WRIT OF 

ASSISTANCE” and page 9, paragraph 2 of same listed therein, but alleged 

peace officer M. Seyfried, S137 in stating such an incredible FALSE TESTIMONY 

WAS THEREFOR, BY HIS OWN ENTRY, DERELICTION OF HIS DUTY TO 

ACT to place Respondent on a MANDATORY 72 HOUR PSYCHOLOGICAL 

HOLD due the SWORN THREAT ALLEGEDLY SPOKEN BY RESPONDENT 

THAT STATES, “…HE WOULD ABDUCT “RESCUE” HIS CHILDREN.”  

Respondent affirms District Court Judge, Audrey J. Borwles has 100% WITHIN HER 

APPOINTED POWERS ACTED APPROPRIATELY TO ENFORCE SAID ORDER, 

ABUSE PREVENTION, RESTRAINING given the incredible assertions of the 
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Petitioner in that Petitioner has sworn under penalty of perjury in this court of law that 

she CONFIRMS Respondent has threatened to abduct and KILL his children which has 

been SUPPORTED BY THE WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF A SWORN PEACE 

OFFICER WHO STATES, “…HE WOULD ABDUCT “RESCUE” HIS 

CHILDREN.” 

Respondent has pending complaints filed against, Detective Corporal Mark Seyfried, S137 

that was reported to Salem Police Department Internal Affairs at (503) 588-6160, in which a return 

call was placed by Sgt. Wiedeman, Badge #504, at approximately 1530 hours on June 17, 2014 in 

which NO documentation regarding said phone call ever existed.  Please see Exhibit “U.” 

Sgt. Alan Graham, S243, also has a pending Internal Affairs complaint [Exhibit “V”] filed 

against him for stating in his “Incident Report – Assist Other Agency” #SMP14023648 generated 

June 22, 2014, [Exhibit “W-1 and W-2”] THAT AFTER SGT. ALAN GRAHAM, S243, 

CLEARLY EMPHASIZED TO RESPONDENT VERBALLY THAT IT IS ALWAYS AGAINST 

SALEM POLICE DEPARTMENT POLICY FOR ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER TO 

DELIVER ANYTHING [EMPHASIS ADDED!] TO ANY CIVILIAN IN ANY CAPACITY EVER 

IN THE SAME MANNER AS A FEDEX CARRIER WOULD CONDUCT HIM/HERSELF, SGT. 

ALAN GRAHAM INSTEAD SUGGESTED THAT HE WOULD BE HAPPY TO STANDBY AS 

AN “OFFICER TO KEEP THE PEACE” IN THE EXCHANGE OF SAID PHONE BETWEEN 

RESPONDENT AND PETITIONER OR RESPONDENT AND PETITIONER’S FIANCE’ 

CHRISTOPHER GARNER, Sgt. Alan Graham writes in his own written report, “I told Richard I 

could meet with him and pick up the phone and deliver it to his children.”  Please see supporting 

ADMISSIBLE video evidence at www.iowaoregonabduction.com.    

Given the Respondent’s excitement to finally be able to verbally reassure his children for the 

first time since seeing or talking to either children for nearly a week, who he has not spoken to since 

the evening hours of Tuesday, June 17, 2014 via Christopher Graham’s cellular phone up through the 
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date of service of said attached Restraining Order 14C31598 on June 22, 2014, thus previously 

VIOLATING the child custody current order, Page 5, Paragraph 8, “The parties shall provide the 

children access to reasonable communication with the other parent while the children are in 

their care.  Each party shall have, at minimum, a cell phone the children can use to 

communicate with the other parent.  The parties shall ensure that callS are returned.”   Said 

Restraining Order was therefore served upon the Respondent as videotaped and ebbed at 

www.iowaoregonabduction.com in the manner indicated at approximately 1845 hours at the Circle K 

parking lot at the intersection of Fairgrounds Road and Highland Avenue, Salem, Oregon 97301. 

Please note, given the WRITTEN APPROVAL by and of Corporal Darron Mumey, Badge 

#258, who “Reviewed/APPROVED” said Incident Report #SMP14023648 and the content and 

conduct as articulated therein, this officer also has a pending complaint filed in Salem Police 

Department Internal Affairs to answer to his direct participation to APPROVE the conduct of law 

enforcement contained therein regarding this matter as well. 

Upon Respondent phoning Internal Affairs regarding the above referenced incredible 

misrepresentations of M. Seyfried, S137, and the alleged dereliction of duty and misconduct of a 

sworn peace officer, Sgt. A. Graham, S243, as he certifies in his own PUBLIC RECORD, Sgt. D. 

Aguilera, Acting “I.A.,” stated in a phone message to Respondent at 1615 hrs., Thursday, June 26, 

2014 that she would forward his complaint to the APPOINTED “I.A,” then off-duty on approved 

vacation leave,  thus PURPOSELY DELAYING the 45 Day MANDATORY WAIT PERIOD A 

COMPLAINTANT MUST WAIT FOR RESOLUTION PER DEPARTMENT POLICY.  Sgt. 

Garret, Badge unknown at time of submission, was not to return to duty until Monday, June 30, 

2014.  Respondent called “ACTING I.A” Sgt. Deborah Aguilera but was only able to leave a voice 

mail message to remind her that SHE is “THE I.A.” and SHALL conduct herself accordingly. 

On the morning of Friday, June 27, 2014, Respondent then reported to the Salem Police 

Department Headquarters, Records window, and requested the ACTING “I.A.” D. Aguilera discuss 
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the above matters in person.  Respondent did his best to maintain his composure but broke down in 

tears after providing the above testimony and the FACT THERE WAS NO RECORD OF 

RESPONDENT’S PHONE CONVERSATION WHATSOEVER IN ANY INTERNAL AFFAIRS 

LOG regarding any details, as refuted “line-by-line” with and from Sgt. Wiedeman, Badge #504 that 

occurred AT ALL on June 17, 2014 to commence the 45 day process to file the complaint against the 

extreme misrepresentations and FALSE WRITTEN TESTIMONY of M. Seyfreid, S137, as 

articulated in #SMP1402271.  As a result a pending complaint is now on file against Sgt. Wiedeman, 

#S504 for his NON RECORD of said conversation in which he verbally implied an amendment to all 

such misrepresentations discussed would be created that can be clearly indicated in Respondents 

subpoenaed phone records to verify said phone conversation did in fact occur. 

Due to the fact that “ACTING I.A.”  Sgt. D. Aguilera refused to immediately commence her 

investigation into the WRITTEN TESTIMONY of  Sgt. A. Graham, S243, in Incident Report 

#SMP14023648 as phone requested in the afternoon hours of Thursday, June 26, 2014 to commence 

the 45 Day MANDATORY wait period to obtain the results of said investigation per her phone 

message to the Respondent at exactly 1645 hours that date, she too now has a complaint on file in 

Internal Affairs for her conduct as well. 

Sgt. Gordon Albert, S245, who was on scene as back-up and supervisory to “Incident Report 

– Disturbance” SMP14022717, thus the “Reviewing/APPROVING” peace officer for all details 

contained therein, on the morning of June 16, 2014 while in the presence of Respondent at said park 

bench, voluntarily stated to Respondent at that time, “You may have broken a law for traveling to 

Portland LAST WEEK [EMPHASIS ADDED!] when YOU MET the children at the airport.”   

Allow it to be further entered that at exactly 0937 hrs., June 29, 2014, a call lasting 30 

minutes ORIGINATING FROM Salem Police Department dispatch at (503) 378- 1911, Respondent 

filed a verbal complaint to the Salem Police Department Supervisory Sgt. Mary [unknown last name 

and badge number at the time of this writing] sworn under penalty of perjury that in a return phone 
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call from Sgt. Gordon Albert, S245, to Respondent at 0853 hours lasting 15 minutes this date, that in 

fact Sgt. G. Albert, S245 felt that, based on the Respondent’s verbal testimony describing in great 

detail the extreme possibility of mental abuse to Respondent’s said minor children upon being 

transported over State lines on June 10, 2014 with less than the mandatory 72 hours MINIMUM 

NOTICE, that he felt there was ABSOLUTELY NO EVIDENCE to justify and therefor create 

adequate probable cause to contact DHS of Marion County in any manner whatsoever.  

Sgt. G. Albert, S245 then further instructed Respondent to contact a SUBORDINATE 

DETECTIVE CORPORAL at the Salem Police Department on the NON-Emergency number again if 

Respondent felt he wasn’t satisfied with the results provided by Sgt. G. Albert in which the phone 

conversation concluded when Sgt. G. Albert, S245 stated, “Unless you have a question, I am going to 

terminate this call!” Upon Respondent begging Sgt. G. Albert, S245 to reconsider, Sgt. G. Albert, 

S245 again reiterated, “Do you have a question?” and after a short silence, then abruptly hung up 

upon Respondent.  Respondent now has a pending complaint against Sgt. G. Albert, S245 for his 

conduct described herein as sworn by Respondent under penalty of perjury as well. 

Respondent then contacted the Marion County Acute Behavioral Services later that morning, 

confirmed that they are in fact a reporting agency for any and all allegations that may lead to the 

verification and proof of child abuse.  Respondent then made arrangements to attend a second 

psychological assessment later that early afternoon to include any appropriate intervention as 

recommended by the credentialed staff committed to help Respondent and any others in the need of 

mental support as provided to all citizens at said facility at 1118 Oak Street SE, Salem, Oregon  

97301.  As a result of the video, audio and written testimony provided, a report was generated and 

forwarded to Department of Human Services, Child abuse division at4600 25th Avenue SE, Salem, 

Oregon, 97301.   Please thoroughly review the attached as Exhibit 

Respondent realizes he has been under extreme stress regarding the details of this matter. To 

back up, Respondent personally met with Kevin Rau, Marion County Sheriff’s Department at 1645 
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hrs. on June 23, 2014 at his office in the basement level of the County of Marion Courthouse 

basement to discuss the facts of this matter and further requested his direction for assistance available 

to Respondent.  Respondent then voluntarily reported to the Marion County Acute Behavior 

Services, 1118 Oak Street, Salem, Oregon, at 1834 hrs. this date where Respondent was evaluated by 

Maria Pos, Masters in Counseling, who has yet to produce a mental evaluation report that is still not 

prepared at the time of this submission June 30, 2014.   

Respondent concurs the evaluation went extremely well as an opportunity to be fully heard 

and vent one last time regarding every detail of this incredible “EVENT” in which Respondent 

remains within miles of his two children until the moment they are returned to HIS SAFETY that he 

unknowingly did NOT RESPECT the potential of the “EXTREME IRRATIONAL 

BEHAVIORIAL” of the Petitioner as articulated and proven with admissible evidence contained 

herein to conspire, enroll others, and execute every deliberate step with precision to achieve what she 

has so far created:   

“SEPARATION OF RESPONDENT FROM HIS MINOR CHILDREN UNTIL 

FURTHER NOTICE AS AN OPPORTUNITY, UPON USING THE LOVE RESPONDENT 

HAS FOR HIS CHILDREN, TO PUNISH RESPONDENT MALICIOUSLY AS SHE SEES 

FIT AS SHE HAS FOR YEARS AS EVIDENCED CONTAINED HEREIN.  RESPONDENT 

REQUESTS THE COURT TO TAKE IMMEDIATE ACTION BASED ON THE 

ADMISSIBLE EVIDENCE CONTAINED HEREIN.”  
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